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2 March 2011 
 
 
Mr Stephen Palethorpe 
Committee Secretary 
Environment and Communications References Committee 
 
By email: ec.sen@aph.gov.au 
 
 
 
Dear Stephen  
 
 
RE: FAIR GO COMMITTEE SUBMISSION – SOUTHERN FREIGHT RAIL CORRIDOR, QLD 
 
 
Thank you for your letter of 11 February 2011 which brings to my attention the submission by the Fair Go 
Committee surrounding my land at Mutdapilly, Queensland in relation to the Southern Freight Rail Corridor.  
This is obviously not the first time that this local group has sought Government investigation into this future rail 
corridor.  The matter was investigated in Queensland last year via the State Government.   It is apparent that the 
local group known as the Fair Go Committee, not being satisfied with that investigation, now wishes your 
Committee to become involved. 
 
The submission by the Fair Go Committee seems to be interested in protecting koalas.  This is the obvious 
conclusion having read the first paragraph of the excerpt provided by your letter of 11 February.  However on 
further reading, I am not so sure.  Is the Fair Go Committee interested in protecting koalas, or is it asserting some 
collusion by a Doyle Group company with the State Government or is it protesting against a number of people in 
the area (but not those part of the Fair Go Committee) who have bought and sold in the area profitably ?  
 
I simply cannot provide any information to your Committee or the Fair Go Committee regarding koalas.  If the 
koala and its protection is the burning reason for the submission by the Fair Go Committee to your office, there 
would be qualified people in the Queensland Government and external consultants who would more suitable to 
address their issues.  All I can say is that the flora and fauna consultants engaged by Doyle Group to investigate 
the area as part of our due diligence and on-going work with this site did not find any koala habitat or corridor on 
the Doyle Group land.  Please refer to reports attached. 
 
I strongly refute any allegation of “Government collusion”.  The suggestion of the Fair Go Committee is that I 
somehow knew that the final position of a future rail corridor would be on land that I subsequently purchased.  
This suggestion is ridiculous.  As you will see from the contents of this letter, I made submissions to the 
Queensland Government (ie Queensland Transport) not to include the rail corridor on my land as I perceived a 
rail corridor on my land as detrimental to the development potential and value of my land.  As it turns out, the 
future rail corridor is not on my land. Through information made public by Queensland Transport during the past 
3 years, the location of the rail corridor has changed numerous times.   
 
Please now allow me to provide some background and information regarding this site. 
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Site History 
 
Cunningham Industry Precinct Pty Ltd (CIP), a Doyle Group company purchased the 265 Ha property in 2006. 
The site is located on the Cunningham Highway approximately 15km south of the city of Ipswich and 
approximately 2.5 km to the south of the Willowbank Motorsport Precinct which incorporates Queensland’s 
primary motorsports including a multipurpose racetrack, cart facilities and the Willowbank Speedway (drag 
racing complex). 
 
The Cunningham Highway is classified as a high order freight route linking the southern states to Brisbane. 
When purchased (as is still the case) the site was zoned Regional Industry and Business Investigation  with a 
small portion of the site (along the frontage with the Cunningham Highway) zoned Regional Industry and 
Business buffer. 
 
The site was also contained within the proposed Expanded Motorsport Precinct within the Ebenezer-Willowbank 
precinct under the Ipswich Planning scheme. The provisions within the Ipswich planning scheme (at the time) 
referred to the Ipswich motorsport precinct strategic planning study as a planning resource document. This 
document is held by Ipswich City Council and it sets out possible expansion plans for the motorsport precinct and 
surrounding land use. Some of the proposed uses for the area included the possibility of industrial development 
for the subject site and area. (Note: in November 2009 Ipswich City Council amended the Ebenezer-Willowbank 
Precinct Plan within the Ipswich Planning Scheme, including the CIP site in a future industry precinct).  
 
In undertaking due diligence on the CIP site prior to purchase it was determined that it was essentially 
unconstrained in nature. The site was primarily clear of vegetation and was not impacted by the constraint 
overlays contained in the Ipswich planning scheme. These related to such elements as vegetation, flooding, 
undermining, bushfire, environmental etc.  
 
In addition, part of the site (Cunningham Highway frontage) was also greater than 3km along the highway from 
the Cunningham Highway – Champions Way intersection, to the north. This was critical as our advice from traffic 
consultants was that in the longer term there would be the need for an interchange at Champions Way to service 
the Motorsport Precinct and the minimum distance for any additional highway interchange was 3km. This meant 
that in the future there was the high possibility from a road planning perspective that an interchange could be 
built along the frontage of the CIP site. This interchange would be necessary to service a large industrial estate. 
 
The site was therefore viewed as a strategic landholding by CIP with significant development potential for an 
industrial estate. 
 
Plans  
 
CIP has over the course of the last 4-5 years produced numerous plans and concepts over the landholding. This 
has included numerous plans and concepts incorporating the neighbouring properties showing road links and 
possible lot layouts. In some circumstances these documents have been updated periodically without the 
appropriate changes made to plan versions and dates etc. 
 
Liaison with State Government 
 
Liaison with the State Government over the CIP landholding and the land owned by the State Government to the 
west and north has occurred with the view to master planning the area and providing infrastructure solutions.  
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A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was entered into in 2008 between CIP, the State Government and other 
land owners within the general vicinity of the site. A copy of this MOU is attached as Attachment 1.  
 
Southern Rail Freight Corridor Study 
 
The study area for the rail corridor released in October and November 2007 encompassed the whole of the CIP 
site, and the properties adjoining the site to the south which are constrained by protected vegetation.  Copies of 
letters received from Queensland Transport to CIP as owner of land within the study area dated 4 October 2007 
(Attachment 2) and 30 November 2007 (Attachment 3) are attached.  
 
Due to the constrained nature of these properties to the south it was logical to assume that the rail corridor 
would have to pass through the CIP site as there was no other corridor being investigated.  
The assertion that this would add value to the CIP site is wrong. 
 
In reality, any preserved corridor for associated long term infrastructure does not add value. The effect of such 
corridors is that they sterilise a portion of the site from development, whilst complicating access, road patterns, 
earthworks and services design.  
 
The CIP submission dated 11 December 2008 to the Minister for Transport, Trade, Employment and Industrial 
Relations in respect to the Southern Rail Freight Corridor Study reiterates the company’s concerns with the then 
selected alignment and how that may prejudice the development of the site and the proposed industrial precinct. 
This submission was written following meeting with Queensland Transport / Maunsell representatives on the 
study. The submission proposed alternative alignments through the study area to minimise the impact of the 
corridor as far as practicable.  The submission is attached as Attachment 4. 
 
CIP welcomed the news that the preferred route was to be re-investigated (away from the CIP site) as it meant 
that the proposed access to the CIP site (at that time) could be preserved and a large portion of the site would not 
be precluded from development. 
 
CIP’s email submission dated 14 May 2010 on the new proposed alignment reiterated that position.  A copy of the 
email is attached as Attachment 5. 
 
In summary, CIP are supportive of the Southern Rail Freight Corridors proposed alignment which is not on the 
subject CIP property. 
 
CIP environmental / koala investigations 
 
CIP has undertaken significant environmental investigations over the subject property.  
 
Please find enclosed: 
 

a) A copy of Koala Habitat Rehabilitation Values Assessment by ecologists Orogen Pty Ltd dated 26 February 
2010 as Attachment 6.  This report formed the basis of a submission by CIP on the Queensland State 
Governments draft South East Queensland Koala Conservation State planning policy and the Draft South 
East Queensland Koala Conservation State planning regulatory provisions which was released for comment 
in December 2009. 



 

   
Head Office:   2 Williams Street, Dayboro Q 4521    (PO Box 15, Dayboro Q 4521)   T: 07 3425 1636   F: 07 3425 1730 

Level 14 Waterfront Place, 1 Eagle Street, Brisbane Q 4000 (PO Box 7095, Waterfront Place, Brisbane Q 4001) T:07 3221 3200 F:  07 3221 7176 
“Undabri”Goodar Road, Goondiwindi Q 4390 (PO Box 1082, Goondiwindi Q 4390) T: 07 4671 4360 F:  07 4671 0037  

www.doylegroup.com.au 

-4- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This report concluded that it was unlikely that the rehabilitation of the site would successfully create 
Koala habitat/corridor function.  

 
b) A copy of the Detailed Ecological Site Assessment Report dated 18 October 2010 by ecologists Orogen Pty 

Ltd as Attachment 7.  The Environment and Communications Reference Committee may be interested in 
the following section of the report as it pertains to Koala and habitat: 
 
6.2.5  Spotlight surveys over the subject site 
6.3.1  Fauna corridors 
7.2  Fauna 
8.2  Fauna and Habitat Management 
8.2.2  Koala 
9.1  Conclusion and Recommendations 

 
In respect to the issues of koala and habitat only one ‘off site’ Koala was surveyed through the 
investigation and no evidence of Koala was identified on the subject site. 

 
This report forms part of a recent referral to the Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, 
Population and Communities, under the EPBC Act.  

 
In conclusion, my dealings with the site are entirely consistent with good practice.  The CIP site is not a koala site 
for a habitat or a corridor based on the reports of Orogen Pty Ltd and the State’s own environmental experts.  I 
am not privy to the workings or thinking of Queensland Transport.  Where that State Government department 
plans its future rail corridors is not information that I am privy to.   
 
If I can provide any further information to your Committee, please feel free to ask of me. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
DOYLE GROUP 

CRAIG DOYLE 
Managing Director 
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